KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 148 N. Binkley Street Soldotna, AK 99669

REGULAR SCHOOL BOARD MEETING:

SCHOOL BOARD MEMBERS:

April 1, 2002 - 7:30 p.m. at the Borough Administration Building, Soldotna, AK.

Dr. Nels Anderson, President Ms. Deborah Germano, Vice President Mrs. Sammy Crawford, Clerk Mr. Joe Arness, Treasurer Mrs. Debra Mullins, Member Mr. Al Poindexter, Member Mrs. Margaret Gilman, Member Miss Katie Lockwood, Student Representative

<u>Worksessions</u>

3:00 p.m. Education Legislation (Conference call with legislators)3:30 p.m. Graduation Requirements

- 1. Executive Session Budget and Negotiations (beginning at 4:30 p.m.)
- 2. Opening Activities

A-G-E-N-D-A

- a. Call to Order
- b. Pledge of Allegiance/National Anthem/Alaska Flag Song
- c. Roll Call
- d. Approval of Agenda
- e. Approval of Minutes/March 4, 2002
- 3. School Reports

4. Public Presentations (Items not on agenda, 3 minutes per speaker,

- 30 minutes aggregate)
- 5. Hearing of Delegations
- 6. Communications and Petitions
- 7. Advisory Committee, Site Councils and/or P.T.A., K.P.A.A., K.P.E.A., K.P.E.S.A.
- 8. Awards and Presentations
- a. Soldotna Trustworthy Hardware
- b. Lisa Bote-Phillips, Kenai Central High Special Education Aide
- 9. Superintendent's Report
- 10. Reports
 - a. Partnerships Report Dr. Gary Whiteley

b. Board Reports

11. Action Items

a.

Consent Agenda

- (1) Approval of <u>Tentative Tenure Teacher Assignment</u>
- (2) Approval of Leave of Absence Requests-Certified
- (3) Approval of <u>Leave of Absence Requests-Support</u>
- (4) Approval of Terminations
- (5) Approval of Seward Bus Purchase
- (6) Approval of <u>Budget Transfers</u>

<u>Finance</u>

- b. Approval of FY02 Budget Revision
- c. Approval of FY 2002-2003 Budget

Administrative Services

d. Approval of <u>Resignations</u>

e. Approval of <u>Administrative Recommendation Regarding Outsource of Seward Girls</u> <u>Softball</u>

Superintendent

- f. Approval of <u>2002-2003 Tentative Board Meeting Dates</u>
- 12. First Reading of Policy Revisions
 - a. <u>BP 6158, Health Curriculum Opt Out Provisions</u>

13. Public Presentations/Comments (Individuals are limited to three minutes each on the topic(s) listed below or on any topic.)

- 14. Board Comments
- 15. Executive Session
- 16. Adjourn

* * * * * * *

Memo To:	Members, Board of Education
From:	Gary Whiteley, Ed. D. Assistant Superintendent of Instruction
Date:	March 25, 2002
Re:	GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

The enclosed information is background for discussion on April 1 during the work session on graduation requirements. The packet of information contains graduation requirements for the Anchorage, Matanuska-Susitna, Juneau, Fairbanks, and Kenai Peninsula school districts.

Additionally, the course sequences for language arts, mathematics, and science are enclosed. A January 1999 memorandum that outlines the last revision to graduation requirements is included for your review.

Enclosures

KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT Homer High School Homer, AK 99603

March 4, 2002

SCHOOL BOARD MEMBERS: STAFF PRESENT:	Dr. Nels Anderson, President Ms. Deborah Germano, Vice President Mrs. Sammy Crawford, Clerk Mr. Joe Arness, Treasurer Mrs. Debra Mullins, Member Mrs. Margaret Gilman, Member Mr. Al Poindexter, Member Miss Katie Lockwood, Student Representative Dr. Donna Peterson, Superintendent of Schools Mrs. Melody Douglas, Chief Financial Officer	
	Dr. Gary Whiteley, Assistant Superintendent, Instruction Mr. Todd Syverson, Assistant Superintendent, Administrative Services	
OTHERS PRESENT:	Mr. Richard Putney Dr. Ron Keffer Mr. Dave Evans Mr. Glen Szymoniak Mr. Peter Swanson Ms. Ginny Espenshade Mrs. Cindy Barker Ms. Barb Browning Ms. Francie Roberts Mrs. Patty Jay Mrs. Eileen Clark Mrs. Bev Gillaspie Ms. Anita Harry Mr. Randy Creamer Dr. Roy Anderson Mr. Tim Whip Mrs. Sherry Conley Mrs. Molly Brann Ms. Francie Roberts Others present not identified.	Miss Jennifer Poindexter Mr. Hans Bilben Mr. Gregg Wilbanks Mr. Rick Matiya Mr. Dick Sanders Mr. Dick Sanders Mr. Mike Heimbuch Mrs. Anne Heimbuch Mr. Tony Parlow Mr. John Bushell Mrs. Dana Sanders Mrs. Paula Setterquist Ms. Rebecca Boone Mrs. Kari Greiner Ms. Debbie Smith Mrs. Melissa Cloud Miss Hannah Harrison Miss Kasey Aderhold Ms. Jill Showman Mr. Chris Perk
CALL TO ORDER:	Dr. Anderson called the meeting to order at 7:34 p.m.	
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:	Dr. Anderson invited those present to participate in the Pledge of Allegiance.	
ROLL CALL:	Dr. Nels Anderson Ms. Deborah Germano Mrs. Sammy Crawford Mr. Joe Arness Mrs. Debra Mullins Mrs. Margaret Gilman Mr. Al Poindexter Miss Katie Lockwood	Present Present Present Present Present Present Absent/Excused

KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:	The agenda was approved as written.
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:	The School Board Minutes of February 18, 2002, were approved as printed.

SCHOOL REPORTS:

Mr. Dave Evans, Razdolna Elementary principal/teacher, gave a PowerPoint presentation highlighting the school history and demographics. He stated that the school instructional goal is to improve oral language in three areas as defined by the First Steps framework and is supported through Author's Day, a health fair and science fair. He explained that 100% of incoming kindergarten students speak Russian as their only language. He noted that disciplinary action is rarely needed; students obey on first request. He reported that the school sponsors a vegetable fair, fire safety training, and a six-week summer library program which provides local access to school library books. He reported that the staff conducts weekly collaboration meetings to discuss students and instructional strategies and monthly collaboration meetings with onsite and itinerant staff to celebrate successes and discuss concerns. He reported on student assessment data and state standards. He noted that daily road access, parent involvement, building maintenance, facility inadequacies, poor attendance with migrant families and 100% high school dropout rate by Grade 10 (some students take the GED test) are some of the challenges that face the school. He reported that meeting dual language needs of students, convincing leaders that dual language learners have the capacity to surpass singlelanguage learners in all academic areas by age 14, and maintaining a kindergarten through 12 school setting that embraces the culture and produces successful learners ready to support families at a young age are some of the big issues that face the Razdolna staff.

Mr. Glen Szymoniak, Homer Middle School principal, explained that the school offers four core classes and several exploratory classes including technology skills taught by Mr. John Bushell, a full-time technology teacher. He introduced Miss Kasey Aderhold and Miss Hannah Harrison who gave a PowerPoint presentation thanking the Board, administration, and Borough for the new computers. The presentation highlighted many areas where the new computers are being used. Miss Harrison explained that all teachers post their assignments and grades online and maintain websites where they post the standards that are addressed in their classes. She noted that the school has been participating in Cyber Safari, a nationwide competition, and placed first in 1999, tenth last year, and are waiting for the results of this year's competition. She stated that the Kachemak Bay Branch of the University of Alaska uses the computer lab for college courses and the After the Bell Program uses the computers to provide student academic assistance.

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS: Miss Jennifer Poindexter, Homer High senior, thanked Board members for the opportunity to join them in Juneau. She summarized the two-day Youth Institute held in conjunction with the AASB Legislative Fly-In. She reported that students heard from Derek Peterson who spoke on the importance of student representation on school boards and explained the legislative process. She stated that other speakers talked about the trend of students attending colleges outside of Alaska and the history of Alaska's financial status. She referred to a booklet titled, *Citizens Information Kit*, which provides information regarding Alaska's financial situation and suggested that each District government class have a copy of the booklet to help them better understand Alaska's financial problems. She reported that the last two days were spent visiting with legislators and that Board members presented the District's financial picture to the legislators. She reported that she asked legislators to consider funding a natural resource vocational class in every school in Alaska as soon as the

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS (Continued): Mrs. Molly Brann, Kachemak Selo fourth, fifth and sixth grade teacher, stated that the school is extremely overcrowded and asked the Board to be proactive and help solve the problem. She explained that the school is housed by two buildings that are leased by the District and owned by the village of Kachemak Selo. She reported that the \$20,000 lease is a bargain when start-up costs for other schools are much higher. She reported on improvements made to the school last year by the village. She stated that the school does not require District funds for building maintenance, bussing, a lunch program, band, choir, music, cocurricular activities, physical education, pool maintenance, utilities, snow removal, or computer and video equipment. She reported that Kachemak Selo parents want students to learn to read and write in English and Russian and to learn math by using books and real experiences. She reported that Kachemak Selo children do not have televisions or computers at home. She stated that the school needs two more classrooms and supply money for books and hands-on activities. She suggested that the village request a loan from the District to build a new building. She invited the Board to visit the school. She shared letters written by Kachemak Selo students regarding the overcrowding situation.

> Mrs. Sherry Conley, McNeil Canyon Elementary fourth grade teacher, reported that she and Mr. Walker, Seward Middle/High teacher, participated in the First Annual Alaska Teacher Forum in Juneau. She reported that the purpose of the forum was to discuss teacher recruitment and retention. She stated that six former Alaskan Teachers of the Year, a national Teacher of the Year and four national board certified teachers participated in the forum. She noted that participants in the round table discussion included Commissioner Holloway, Eric Madson (EED Recruitment and Retention Project Director), legislators, state policy makers university leaders, and superintendents from around the state. She stated that the forum provided the participants various talking points to analyze and seek a remedy of the growing need of teacher recruitment and retention which were; 1) the need to be serious about standards for students and teachers, 2) the need to look at teacher preparation and professional development, 3) the need to fix teacher recruitment and put qualified teachers in every classroom, 4) the need to encourage and reward teacher knowledge and skill and 5) the need to create schools that are organized for teacher and student success. She reported that the forum identified several areas to be addressed which include validation, formal mentoring programs, research for teacher attrition, preservice preparation, internships and fellowship for interns, compensation, competitive salaries, loan forgiveness, planning collaboration and preparation time, professional development and growth that is teacher-driven, trained and compensated. She stated that she and Mr. Walker appreciated the support to be able to attend.

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS (Continued): Ms. Francie Roberts, Homer High math and QUEST teacher, reported that the Homer High Academic Decathlon team placed second in District 4A and third place in the state. She announced that this year is the first time Homer High has participated at the state level. She noted that the students who participated were Syverine Abrahamson, Travis Keefer, Alder Seaman, Colby Sander, Miriah Phelps, Luke Roberts, Aaron Smith, Toby Pruitt and Joe Pfeil. She stated that in addition to receiving the overall trophy, the students also received medals for individual competitions. She stated that Colby Sander and Luke Roberts received bronze medals in math, Travis Keefer and Luke Roberts received bronze medals in music, Luke Roberts received a bronze medal in interview, Syverine Abrahamson received a silver medal in interview and Luke Roberts received a silver medal in science, and Colby Sander and Travis Keefer were awarded overall high scores in the 4A division. She stated that Luke Roberts received a \$1000 scholarship. She explained that the Academic Decathlon is a test in ten categories that are covered in most high schools and attributed her students' success to the kindergarten through twelfth grade education they received from teachers in the Homer area.

Ms. Eileen Clark, Homer High, English, journalism and yearbook teacher, stated that each year teachers are expected to do more with less time, money and colleagues and then in the spring are asked to make even more budget cuts and assume more responsibilities. She stated that it is time for the District and state legislature to hear teachers' concerns. She stated that the District must ensure that educators have less demands and more time to prepare and instruct. She stated that the District must ensure that Kenai Peninsula schools retain and recruit quality teachers. She asked the Board to continue to negotiate a contract in good faith for quality teachers and quality education. She stated that the students in the District deserve a quality education and should be considered an investment for the future, and are considered Alaska's best natural resource.

Ms. Jill Showman, Voznesenka Elementary teacher, stated that in the past five years she has seen numerous cuts to programs and schools. She stated that without educational supplies and textbooks, students will have nothing to learn. She stated that teachers in the Russian villages are teaching in crowded schools with not enough chairs or supplies. She stated that the school staff has done everything possible to make ends meet and added that she has spent more than \$650 of her own money for teaching supplies (not including the cost of classes or educational memberships). She stated that the workload continues to increase and yet more budget cuts are made. She noted that she teaches two Russian classes, two applied communications classes, is the school librarian, and beginning on March 4, will teach a reading class. She stated that she does not have textbooks for any of her classes and much of her personal time is spent preparing lessons and locating teaching materials. She stated that she is concerned about the contract the District has proposed. She stated that approximately 10% of the teaching staff is eligible to retire and more will consider leaving the District if the proposed contract is enacted. She stated that without quality educators the students will have no one to teach them.

Mr. Chris Perk, Homer High athletic director and former graduate, thanked his past teachers for their awesome patience, and the School Board, administration, and community of Homer for their support. He stated that support for teachers is critical and noted that everyone has suffered through budget reductions. He stated that he is proud to be working in the education field and added that he appreciates all of his former teachers. He stated that he is proof that teachers do make a difference.

ADVISORY COMMITTEE, SITE P.E.A., K.P.E.S.A.:

Mr. Hans Bilben, complimented Miss Poindexter and the students who presented the COUNCIL, AND/OR P.T.A., K.P.A.A., K. Homer Middle school report and added that they are a credit to District teachers. He reported that according to a recent KPEA survey, 49% of teachers surveyed stated that they will leave the District within the next two years if the negotiated contract does not meet their expectations. He stated that after 15 years of budget cuts, teachers must see some changes. He noted that he will join a group who will travel to Juneau to speak to the legislature about funding for education. He stated that when he arrived on the Peninsula the District was considered one of the best in the

country and added that he would like to return it to that level.

COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS: Dr. Peterson reported that she has received a letter from the North Peninsula Recreation Service Area regarding the consolidation of schools and a memo from KPSAA regarding a Seward outsource application for baseball and softball.

AWARDS AND PRESENTATIONS: The Board presented a Golden Apple Award to Mrs. Angela McKinney, Chapman Elementary volunteer, for her service and dedication to the District. Ms. Mondari, Razdolna Elementary and Kachemak-Selo Elementary secretary, and Ms. Jane Symens, Chapman Elementary volunteer, were not in attendance but also received Golden Apple Awards.

SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT: Dr. Peterson announced that the Borough Assembly will conduct a worksession on Tuesday, March 12 at 4:00 p.m. to continue the review and discussion of the final report filed by the Borough Reapportionment Committee regarding School Board apportionment and districting. Dr. Peterson reported that the "Leave No District Behind" legislative campaign was recently discussed in a meeting that included parents, Board members, and administration. She explained that the campaign addresses the area cost differential, rural schools and geographic differences in the District. She noted that the information will be posted on the District website. She announced that she will travel to Juneau with a delegation from the District on March 5 to discuss the campaign with state legislators. She announced that she will travel to Juneau again on March 20 for further discussions with the legislature.

Dr. Anderson encouraged those present to read the "Leave No District Behind" proposal. He stated that the information shows that the District would receive approximately 2.5 million more each year if it were funded consistently with the rest of the state. He stated that the District is pressing the issue very hard this year but may not see any changes until the area cost differential is reviewed in the fall.

2002-2003 BUDGET PRESENTATION: Mrs. Melody Douglas presented the 2002-2003 preliminary School District budget. She recommended that \$1,453,435 in adjustments be made to reconcile the FY03 general fund expenditure budget. She reported that on March 12 the Assembly will discuss a resolution to award the District approximately \$2 million in retroactive interest earnings. She noted that a revised budget may be presented to the Board at the April 1 meeting depending upon action taken by the Assembly. She noted that the District expects additional revenue from the legislature but, at this time, the amount is unknown

Ms. Germano reported that the Board discussed budget issues at an earlier worksession.

BOARD REPORTS:

Mr. Poindexter reported that he went to Juneau with Miss Poindexter, Mrs. Gilman and Ms. Germano. He stated that originally he did not plan to go on the trip but changed his mind after listening to a delegation of teachers insist that the Board's job is to communicate District needs to the legislature. He stated that while in Juneau he heard discussions about inflation-proofing the education foundation funding and Learning Opportunity grants. He stated that the House of Representatives is working hard to solve the fiscal gap problem but that a block of senators have decided that the state does not have a fiscal problem and won't for another 25 years because the money will come out of the permanent fund dividend principal. He urged those present to contact the senators and express their concern for the fiscal gap. He suggested that Board members read the booklet titled, "Citizen's Workbook." He reported that the Board did their best to plead their case but stated that he doubts much will be accomplished until after the election. He reported that he attended the Career Technical Student Organization District Conference where students participated in numerous skill and leadership competitions. He stated that Miss Poindexter placed first in the speech contest.

Mrs. Gilman reported that she attended the AASB Legislative Fly-In. She stated that she felt strong support from local legislators. Mrs. Gilman recounted the details of a visit with a senator who suggested that she view the \$1 billion fiscal gap as her own personal financial problem. Mrs. Gilman stated that her response to the senator was that education would still be a priority. Mrs. Gilman urged those present to concentrate their lobbying efforts for additional education funding with local legislators.

Ms. Germano echoed comments made by Mrs. Gilman and Mr. Poindexter regarding the Legislative Fly-in. She reported that the public opinion polls indicate that the top concern of Alaskans' is education funding. She stated that she encouraged District legislators to provide leadership for the state to move forward. She stated that she feels an increase in education funding is likely and added that she hopes it will be included in the foundation formula. She stated that inflation-proofing the formula has been discussed by legislators.

Mr. Arness reported that the Kenai Peninsula Student Activities Association (KPSAA) denied an outsource application for Seward softball until more information is provided. He stated that the prime sponsor requested that the decision be appealed to the Board so that spring practices can begin. He reported that KPSAA received more information from the Seward softball group. He stated that he informed the Seward softball group that it was too late for an appeal during the March 4 Board meeting since the agenda had already been set. He stated that he would speak to individual Board members even though no decision could be made.

Dr. Anderson asked whether the Seward softball group could proceed without formal Board action if the KPSAA board finds that the outsource application is acceptable. Mr. Arness explained that the KPSAA board will not meet for approximately two months but that members could be contacted by phone. Mr. Arness stated that the Seward group could proceed without formal Board action.

Mr. Arness announced that he will be in Juneau on March 5, 6, and 7, 2002.

CONSENT AGENDA:	Items presented on the Consent Agenda were Leave of Absence Requests –Certified, New Teacher Assignment, Resignations, Tentative Tenure Teacher Assignment, Administrative Recommendation Regarding Leave of Absence Requests – Support, Budget Transfers, and Sabbatical Request.
Leave of Absence Requests –Certified:	Mr. Syverson recommended the Board approve an unpaid leave of absence request for the 2002-2003 school year for Douglas Emmerich, Grade 4, Mountain View Elementary; Steve Gillaspie, health/physical education, Nikiski Middle/High; Russell Lewis, Grade 6, Tustumena Elementary; Linda Overturf, home economics, Soldotna Middle; and Bev Hunter-Gillaspie, assistant principal, Homer High.
New Teacher Assignment:	Mr. Syverson recommended the Board approve a teacher assignment for the 2001-2002 school year for Amber Fischer, elementary music (temporary), Tustumena Elementary.

KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Resignations:	Mr. Syverson recommended the Board approve resignations for Malcolm Fleming, unassigned, (effective March 4, 2002); Ralph Steeves, Moose Pass School principal/ teacher (effective at the end of the 2001-2002 school year); Alice Tucker, Spring Creek principal/teacher (effective at the end of the 2001-2002 school year); and Donald Glaze, Nikiski Middle/High assistant principal (effective at the end of the 2001-2002 school year).
Tentative Tenure Teacher Assignment:	Mr. Syverson recommended the Board approve a tentative tenure teacher assignment for the 2002-2003 school year for Dale Moon.
Administrative Recommendation Regarding Leave of Absence Requests – Support:	Mr. Syverson recommended the Board approve an unpaid leave of absence request for the 2002-2003 school year for Jeanie Carter, special education aide, Nikiski Middle/High. Mr. Syverson recommended the Board not approve an unpaid leave of absence request for the 2002-03 school year for Debbie Church, school secretary II, Nikiski Middle/High.
Budget Transfers:	Mrs. Douglas recommended the Board approve budget transfer Number 252 for Aurora Borealis Charter School for \$19,575 for additional work days for teachers; for \$55,000 for desks, chairs, curriculum and classroom supplies for three classrooms; and for \$40,000 for computer purchases.
	Mrs. Douglas recommended the Board approve budget transfer Number 256 to reallocate part of the Learning Opportunity Grant request as follows: \$298,000 to fund the after school and summer After-The-Bell programs at Nikiski, Seward, Homer and Kenai; \$10,000 to provide counseling treatment and support to grade 7-12 students by Seaview Community Services; and \$10,000 to provide out-of-school suspension services for Homer Alternative School.
Sabbatical Request:	Mr. Syverson recommended the Board approve an unpaid sabbatical request for the 2002-2003 school year for Jerry Dixon, Quest, Seward Elementary.
ACTION	Ms. Germano moved the Board approve Consent Agenda Items Numbers 1 through 7. Mrs. Crawford seconded.
	Motion carried unanimously.
Approval of Administrator Appointment:	Dr. Peterson recommended the Board approve an administrator appointment for the 2002-2003 school year for Charles W. Walsworth III, West Homer Elementary principal.
ACTION	Mrs. Crawford moved the Board approve Charles W. Walsworth III as West Homer Elementary principal for the 2002-2003 school year
	Motion carried unanimously.
BOARD COMMENTS:	Mrs. Gilman thanked the Razdolna Elementary and Homer Middle schools for their presentations. She recommended that the slides from the Razdolna School showing the difficulty in commuting to school be included in the legislative information packet. Mrs. Gilman commended the students who spoke to the Board and noted that they are the result of the education that has been provided by District teachers. She reported that she was a guest reader for Dr. Suess' birthday party at Sears Elementary.

Ms. Germano thanked Ms. Roberts for her work with the Homer High School Academic Decathlon team. She stated that she was particularly pleased that the results of the competition were reported in the newspaper. She noted that the Skyview wrestling team received a citation in the state senate. She thanked the Homer Middle School students who presented the school report. She recognized all District employees for their hard work and noted that the business of education is becoming more stressful. She asked all employees to appreciate each other for their dedication and contribution to education.

Mrs. Crawford thanked Mr. Evans and Mr. Szymoniak for their school presentations. She expressed her appreciation for the presentations from the public. She stated that she reluctantly supports the preliminary FY03 budget and added that she hopes the District will receive funding help from the legislature. She echoed Ms. Germano's positive comments regarding District employees.

Mr. Poindexter thanked the public for their attendance and noted that several of his former students were in the audience. He stated that he enjoyed both school presentations and noted that Razdolna has lessons for the rest of the District regarding dual languages. He stated that he understood the difficulties of commuting to school and compared Razdolna School with his own experiences as a student in Alaska. He stated that the Homer Middle School presentation was outstanding. He reported that Miss Harrison recently placed third in the Homer Soil and Water Speech Contest, Miss Poindexter placed second, and Miss Cushing placed first and will represent the District in Anchorage. Mr. Poindexter informed those present that the vocational education worksession was held prior to the Board meeting at 3:30 p. m. He stated that he appreciated Ms. Roberts' work with the Academic Decathlon team and added that the District needs to participate in more competitions of that kind.

Mr. Arness thanked the schools for their presentations.

BOARD COMMENTS (Continued): Mrs. Mullins thanked the public for their attendance. She reminded those present of the open forum held prior to the Board meeting and encouraged the public to informally speak to the Board about educational issues. She thanked the principals for their school reports and suggested that the District bring legislators to remote schools that are accessible only by four-wheelers. She stated that she is grateful to Mrs. Roberts for bringing the Academic Decathlon trophy and medals to the Board meeting. She stated that there are many children in the District who have achieved academic honors that should be recognized. She thanked Miss Poindexter for sharing her comments regarding the trip to Juneau. She stated that the Board tries to take a student each time they travel to Juneau because the legislators will listen to the student. Mrs. Mullins commended Mr. Poindexter for his vocational education presentation.

Dr. Anderson stated that Mr. Poindexter's vocational education presentation was intriguing and thought provoking. He thanked those present for their attendance and for their cordiality. He stated that he appreciated the kind words from Mr. Bilben and noted that three Board members are former teachers and that the rest of the Board members are also strong advocates for education. He stated that the Board is hopeful that the legislature will provide funding relief. He stated that the Board does not like to be viewed as the opposition and added that the members try to be the best possible advocates for education. He announced that his three sons assisted with the U.S. Olympic hockey venue in Salt Lake City, Utah. He stated that he appreciated

	the District employees and public who support the school system.	
EXECUTIVE SESSION:	At 9:07 p.m. Mrs. Mullins moved that the Board go into executive session to discuss matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect upon the finances of the Borough. Specifically, the executive session was to discuss budget and negotiations. Mr. Arness seconded.	
	Motion carried unanimously.	
RECESS:	At 10:45 p.m., Dr. Anderson called a recess.	
RECONVENE AFTER RECESS:	At 5:00 p.m. on Monday, March 11, the Board reconvened in executive session at the Borough Administration Building, Superintendent's Office. Ms. Germano, Mrs. Crawford, Mr. Arness, Mrs. Mullins, and Mrs. Gilman were present. Mr. Poindexter participated via conference call. Dr. Anderson arrived at 5:12 p.m.	
RECESS:	At 6:35 p.m., Dr. Anderson called a recess.	
RECONVENE AFTER RECESS:	At p.m. on, the Board reconvened in executive session at the Borough Administration Building,	
	were present.	
ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION:	At p.m moved the executive session be adjourned seconded.	
	Motion	
ADJOURN:	At,,,,,	
	Motion	
	Respectfully submitted,	
	Dr. Nels Anderson, President	

Mrs. Sammy Crawford, Clerk

The Minutes of March 4, 2002, have not been approved as of March 13, 2002.

Memo To:	Members, Board of Education
From:	Gary Whiteley, Ed. D. Assistant Superintendent of Instruction
Date:	March 25, 2002
Re:	PARTNERSHIPS AND MEMORANDA OF AGREEMENT

The Kenai Peninsula Borough School District enters numerous Memoranda of Agreement and Partnerships. I have compiled a list of the organizations and agencies with which we have agreements.

Enclosure

KPBSD Partnerships and Memoranda of Agreement

After the Bell Agrium Aurora Borealis Charter School Administrator Contract Blue Bird Corporation Boys and Girls Club of Alaska Central Peninsula Counseling Services (CPCS) Central Peninsula Sports Center Concession Bar Project (CPC) CCR Data Systems CLD Enterprises/Teen Parenting Agreement Homer Charter School Chugachmiut Curriculum Development Project Chugach School District

CICADA Cross County & Tran Corps **Kathleen** Dinius DFYS D.A.R.E. Educational Technology Consulting Foster Grandparents Program Ed Harrison City Of Homer Homer American Legion and America Legion Auxiliary Homer Electric Association Contract for Electrical Service JSC Consulting, LLC Jerry Covey Kachemak Selo Village Kenai Elementary Facility Kenai Peninsula Administrator Association Kenai Peninsula College Kenai Peninsula Community Care Center Kenai Peninsula Borough/Kenai Elementary **KPAA** Memorandums of Agreement Carlton Kuhns N2H2, Inc. Northwest Regional Education Laboratory **NCS** Pearson North Peninsula Service Recreation North Star Consulting Qutekcak Native Tribe After-School Tutored Services or Cultural Crafts Instruction **Phillips Petroleum** Razdolna Village Reading is Fundamental Shiro-Westphal, Jocelyn SeaView Community Services Seward, City of (Youth & Family Advocate) **SKIAP** Alcohol Program City of Soldotna Solid Rock Bible Camp & Conference Center South Peninsula Mental Health Association Spring Creek Correctional Center University of Alaska Center for Rural Educator Preparation Partnerships University of Alaska - Southeast Unocal Vocational Rehabilitation, Alaska Division of Voznesenka Community Council Weber State University Center

Memo Template 1/6/98

Youth Area Watch

April 1, 2002

TO: Board of Education
FROM: Richard Putney, Director, Human Resources
THROUGH: Todd Syverson, Assistant Superintendent, Administrative Services
SUBJECT: Approval of Tentative Tenure Teaching Assignment/200203- Item 10 a (1)

It is recommended that the following Tentative Tenure Teacher Assignment for the 2002-03school year be approved:

Jennifer Tabor unassigned

Sherri Baktuit

April 1, 2002

	TO:	Board of Education	
	FROM:	Richard Putney, Director, Hu	iman Resources
	THROUGH:	Todd Syverson, Assistant Su	perintendent, Administrative Services
	SUBJECT:	Requests for an Unpaid Leav	re of Absence/Certified – Item 10 a (3)
	It is recommend year:	ded the following requests for u	unpaid leave of absence be approved for 2002-03 school
Janette C	adieux-Lexmond	Physical Therapist	Soldotna Elementary

Soldotna Elementary

Second Grade

April 1, 2002

TO: Board of Education

FROM: Richard Putney, Director, Human Resources

THROUGH: Todd Syverson, Assistant Superintendent, Administrative Services

SUBJECT: Approval of Leave of Absence Requests/Support-Item-10 a (4)

It is recommended that the following request for a one year unpaid leave of absence be approved effective immediately:

Loretta Pearce

Deaf Ed Interpreter

Kenai Middle School

It is recommended the following request for a one year unpaid leave of absence be approved for the 2002-03 school year:

Linda Vroman

Special Ed Aide

North Star Elementary

Memorandum

March 22, 2002

To: Dr. Donna Peterson, Superintendent
 Board of Education
 From: Dave Spence, Director
 Planning & Operations
 Through: Todd Syverson, Assistant Superintendent
 Administrative Services

Subject: Seward Bus Purchase

The Alaska Department of Education and Early Development has authorized the district's purchase of two new 15-passneger special education buses. This purchase is Phase Three of a plan to replace aging units in the Seward operation. When not in use for special education transportation, the buses will be used for activity transportation.

I request that the board approve the lease/purchase of the two new buses.

Thank you.

March 25, 2002

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Education

FROM: Melody Douglas Chief Financial Officer

SUBJECT: Budget Transfers

Budget transfer number 430 is being requested to move funds from the Special Services psychologist and speech therapy salary accounts to professional/technical accounts. The Special Services Department has been unable to hire staff to fill these positions, so the services have been contracted.

Budget transfer number 434 is being requested by the Food Service Department to move funds for food purchases to the kitchens with increased costs due to increased student participation in their programs. The request is to move \$20,000 to Homer High; \$15,000 to Seward High; and \$14,000 to Soldotna High.

These budget transfers exceed \$10,000; therefore, they require Board of Education approval per Board Policy 3120. Approval by the Board of Education is recommended.

Enclosure

March 22, 2002

MEMORANDUM

To:	Board of Education
Though:	Dr. Donna Peterson, Superintendent
From:	Melody Douglas, Chief Financial Officer
Subject:	FY02 Budget Revision Government Revenue Government Expenditures Charter School Budgets

The Kenai Peninsula Borough Assembly passed Resolution 2002-029 at their March 12, 2002 meeting, which will allow the District to receive interest revenue resulting from the District's share of the equity in the central treasury managed by the Borough. In addition, this resolution included a one-time retroactive allocation of interest earnings for fiscal years 1999, 2000 and 2001. The retroactive interest represents \$1,377,534 and the current year interest is projected to be \$387,042 for a total of \$1,764,576 interest revenue for fiscal year 2002. Both the operating fund revenue and expenditure budgets need to be amended to account for this increase. Since the retroactive portion of the interest earnings is a one-time only revenue source, it is recommended that these funds be allocated to one-time only expenditures.

We have also received final foundation revenue information from the Department of Education and Early Development (EED). The FY02 budget revision approved by the Board in January was based on 9805.97 average daily student membership (ADM). Finalization of the student enrollment data submitted to EED resulted in an ADM of 9799.38 for our District. This reduction requires a revenue decrease of \$27,533 in state foundation revenue and a \$6,331 decrease in local contributions from the Kenai Peninsula Borough. The final adjustment relative to the Learning Opportunity Grants allocation is a decrease of \$21,009. The total of these decreases is \$54,873.

Operating Fund Revenue Budget Adjustment:

FY02 budget approved in January 2002

\$75,008,547

September 11, 1998		
Interest per KPB Resolution 2002-02 Final revenue adjustment per EED	29	\$1,764,576 (54,873)
Subtot	al _	<u>\$1,709,703</u>
Revised FY02 operating fund revenue	ie budget	\$76,718,250
Operating Fund Expenditure Bud	get Adjustment:	
FY02 budget approved in January 20	002	\$75,008,547
Contingency for potential future inter Service Recognition Program Final retirement incentive payment f Learning Opportunity Grant adjustm Utilities – rate increases Charter schools adjustment based on (\$50,732 - \$479 = \$50,253) Unallocated funds for emergencies	for FY97, FY98 and Fy lent EED final data *	(21,009) 197,390 50,253 <u>25,000</u>
	Subtotal	<u>\$1,709,703</u>
Revised FY02 operating fund expen-	diture budget	\$76,718,250

In keeping with past practice and EED reporting requirements, the District's Technology Plan revenue and expenditures (and related budgets) will be recorded in the Operating Fund at the end of the fiscal year.

Please note that KPB Ordinance 2001-19 authorized a total FY02 school budget of \$88,420,316. The FY02 budget for all funds is projected to be \$92,322,110. This situation requires the Board of Eductaion to request the Kenai Peninsula Borough Assembly to approve a revised total school budget.

The administration recommends approval of an amended FY02 Operating Fund budget of \$76,718,250 and a total budget for all funds of \$92,322,110.

* see attached

Government Revenue

Government Expenditures Charter School Budgets March 22, 2002

TO:	Board of Education
THROUGH:	Dr. Donna Peterson, Superintendent
FROM:	Melody Douglas, Chief Financial Officer
SUBJECT:	Approval of FY03 Budget – revised budget <u>Government Revenue</u> Government Expenditures

The Kenai Peninsula Borough Assembly passed Resolution 2002-029 at their March 12, 2002 meeting, which will allow the District to receive interest revenue resulting from the District's share of the equity in the central treasury managed by the Borough. A revision to the proposed FY03 budget, submitted to you at the March 4, 2002 Board Meeting, is presented for consideration including additional interest revenue of \$341,209.

The administration recommends the following adjustments to reconcile the FY03 general fund expenditure budget to available revenue totaling \$74,390,220.

Cut social studies and health curriculum adoption funds	(\$ 810,609)
Reduce the technology implementation plan budget	(100,000)
Reduce unallocated staff by 6.6 FTE	(327,416)
Restructure teacher specialist program	(160,000)
Final RIP payment allocated in FY02	(658,069)
Reduce school supply budgets by 5%	(55,410)
Reinstate school supply budgets	55,410
Increase In-Kind Insurance	41,209
Reinstate step increases for employees	700,000
Utilities – rate increases	177,659
Unallocated funds for emergencies	25,000
Total amount of changes	(<u>\$1,112,226</u>)*

* (Original budget adjustment of \$1,453,435 – Interest of \$341,209 = \$1,112,226 required budget adjustment to balance to available revenue.)

Attached are updated revenue and expenditure schedules reflecting this administrative recommendation.

Please note the administration recommends the first three budget modifications be considered temporary reductions, pending additional revenue from the 2002 legislative process. It is likely a revision to this budget recommendation will be submitted for your consideration later this spring.

The administration recommends Board of Education approval of an FY03 Operating Fund Budget of \$74,390,220 and a total budget for all funds of \$89,917,829.

April 1, 2002

TO:	Board of Education

FROM: Todd Syverson, Assistant Superintendent, Administrative Services

SUBJECT: Approval of Resignations - Item 10 d *

It is recommended the following resignations be approved:

Bradley Kloeckl		Currently on unpaid Leave of Absence, effective immediately
Theo Lexmond		Currently on unpaid Leave of Absence, effective immediately
David Martian	8 th Grade Math/Science	Nikiski Middle/High School, effective at the end of the 01-02 school year
Diane Porter	Second Grade	Sears Elementary, effective at the end of the 01-02 school year
Sue Strutz	Physical Education	Homer Middle School, effective at the end of the 01-02 school year
Curtis Terrill	Science	Skyview, effective at the end of the 01-02 school year
A.J. Tiger	Athletic Director	Nikiski Middle/High School, effective at the end of the 01-02 school year
Peggy Totten	8 th Grade Social Studies	Kenai Middle School, effective immediately

Resignations

Rich Toymil

Principal

Paul Banks Elementary; effective at the end of the 01-02 school year

*Please expect a revision to this resignation list on Monday, April 1, 2002 at the Board meeting

Memorandum

DATE:	March 26, 2002
то:	Members, Board of Education
FROM: Donna Peterson, Ed.D. Superintendent of Schools	
RE:	Seward Girls Softball Outsource Application

On March 26, 2002, the administration received information regarding the Seward softball program outsource application and a request for Board reconsideration of instituting the program during spring, 2002. The administration supports programs for students but expects that outsourced programs follow an orderly process of review and approval. There has been no official action on the part of KPSAA regarding the application for Seward softball. We have not had time to review or comment on the myriad of paperwork submitted but we have concerns regarding the viability of this program – for example, this is the first time evidence of insurance has been provided. KPSAA, the organization charged with the review of documentation and decision making has not been afforded the opportunity for review. Therefore, the administration recommends that the Seward softball program resubmit their softball proposal to KPSAA early in the 2002-2003 school year for consideration.

Memorandum

DATE: March 21, 2002
TO: Members, Board of Education
FROM: Donna Peterson, Ed.D.
Superintendent of Schools
RE: 2002-2003 School Board Meeting Dates

The attached School Board meeting calendar reflects the following changes from past patterns:

- the locations for the out-of-town October 7 and November 4 meetings are switched. Seward has expressed a concern that they are always "after the election" so we will be alternating locations each year for these fall meetings;
- one less meeting the second meeting in January usually falls on a holiday. After checking with individual Board members, there was no clear consensus about whether to schedule a second meeting in September to make up for this meeting so we'll try scheduling only 17 meetings this year. Of course, an emergency meeting can be scheduled as necessary.

All other dates/places reflect a rollover from past practice.

2002-2003 TENTATIVE MEETING DATES

SCHOOL BOARD MEETINGS

July 1, 2002 August 5, 2002 August 19, 2002 September 9, 2002 October 7, 2002 - Homer October 21, 2002 January 6, 2003 February 3, 2003 February 17, 2003 March 3, 2003 - Homer April 7, 2003 April 21, 2003 1997-98 TENTATIVE MEETING DATES

November 4, 2002 - Seward November 18, 2002 December 2, 2002 May 5, 2003 - Seward June 2, 2003 June 3, 2003 (Board Planning Session)

Kenai Peninsula Borough School District

Memo To:	Members, Board of Education
From:	Sam Stewart Director, Curriculum and Assessment
Through:	Gary Whiteley, Ed. D. Assistant Superintendent of Instruction
Date:	March 15, 2002
Re:	Policy Revision, First Reading BP 6158 (Health Curriculum Opt Out Provisions)

The attached revision updates district policy BP 6158 (Health Curriculum Opt Out Provisions).

The suggested change is a result of the recommendation of the Health Curriculum Review Committee. The reason for changing the policy is to allow greater parent choice surrounding controversial issues related to the health curriculum.

The administration recommends approval of this policy revision BP 6158.

Attachment: BP 6158

BP 6158

Instruction

HEALTH CURRICULUM OPT OUT PROVISIONS

Prior to instruction each semester (secondary) or year (elementary), each school is responsible for disseminating health curriculum information to parents. This information should include the topics to be covered in the curriculum and the information on the District opt out policy.

Parents are responsible for annually following the opt out procedure contained in regulation to utilize this option.

Parents may choose to opt out their child from specific topics or the entire curriculum at the elementary level **[and specific topics (to a maximum of three class days)]** or the entire curriculum at the middle or high school levels. Students at the middle and high school levels will be required to take a one semester correspondence course in place of the regular curriculum **[if they opt out of the entire curriculum]**.